
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA

Date: February 26, 2013

Time: 6:00 pm

Location: Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order

2. Prayer

A Prayer will be offered by Councillor Singh.

3. Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 13

Public Hearing - January 15, 2013

Regular Meeting - January 15, 2013

Public Hearing - January 29, 2013

Regular Meeting - January 29, 2013

4. Bylaws Considered at Public Hearing

4.1 Bylaw No. 10796 (Z12-0013) - City of Kelowna - Text Amendments to Zoning
Bylaw No. 8000

14 - 17

To give Bylaw No. 10796 second and third readings.

4.2 Bylaw No. 10801 (TA12-0010) - Amending Section 14 - Commercial Zone -
1310-1352 Water Street

18 - 18

To give Bylaw No. 10801 second and third readings.

4.3 Bylaw No. 10802 (Z12-0071) - 1789 KLO Road 19 - 19

To give Bylaw No. 10802 second and third readings and adoption.

5. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the following items on the Agenda
were publicized.



6. Development Permit and Development Variance Permit Reports

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received. Mayor to invite
anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the required
variance(s) to come forward.

6.1 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP12-0185 - 2600 Dubbin Road 20 - 41

To consider a staff recommendation NOT to issue a Development Variance

Permit for the subject property. The applicant is seeking to vary maximum

permitted building height from the lesser of 9.5 m or 2.5 storeys permitted to

16.27 m and 4 storeys proposed, and to vary the maximum permitted building

projection into a required front yard from 0.6 m permitted to 1.2 m proposed, to

facilitate the construction of a new garage on the roof of an existing attached

garage on this steeply sloped, lakefront property.

6.2 Development Permit Application No. DP12-0158 and Development Variance
Permit Application No. DVP12-0218 - 1506 Harvey Avenue and 1544-1550
Harvey Avenue

42 - 64

The Development Permit application is for the Form and Character of a

proposed one-storey commercial development at the northeast corner of

Harvey Avenue and Burtch Road. The accompanying Development

Variance Permit application requests to vary the minimum required

setback along Highway 97 (Harvey Avenue) from 15 m required to 4.5 m

proposed, to facilitate the prominent siting of the proposed commercial

building along Harvey Avenue.

6.3 Development Permit Application No. DP13-0010 and Development Variance
Permit Application No. DVP13-0012 - 840 Stockley Street

65 - 88

To consider a Development Permit for the form and character of the

proposed 4 unit townhouse development. To consider a Development

Variance Permit to the proposed site coverage for buildings and parking

from 50% permitted to 55% proposed and to vary the setback for parking

from 3.0m required to 0.7m proposed.

6.4 ITEM TO BE DEFERRED - Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP13-
0001 - 988 and 989 Frost Road

89 - 97

To consider a Development Variance Permit to reduce the front yard

setback from 3.0m proposed to 0.5m proposed for both 988 & 989 Frost

Road.

6.5 Bylaw No. 10778 (Z12-0061) - 424 Park Avenue 98 - 98



To adopt Bylaw No. 10778.

6.5.1 Heritage Alteration Permit Application No. HAP12-0011 - 424 Park
Avenue

99 - 112

The applicant is requesting a Heritage Alteration Permit (HAP) to

construct a carriage house on the site. A corresponding variance

has been included as part of the HAP to vary the permitted

location of a carriage house.

7. Reminders

8. Termination



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



  

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
 

BYLAW NO. 10796 
 

Text Amendment No. TA12-0013 –Amendment to the City of Kelowna 
Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 – Carriage House Text Amendments 

 

 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts that City of Kelowna 
Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended as follows: 
 
1. THAT Section 2 – Interpretation, 2.3 General Definitions be amended by: 

 
a)  deleting the definition for HEIGHT that reads: 
 

 “HEIGHT means, with respect to a building, the maximum vertical distance between building 
grade and the highest point of the structure of a non-sloping roof, or the mid-point between the 
eaveline and ridge of a sloping roof excluding dormers as provided for in Section 6.6 describes 
restrictions for walkout basements.” 

 
 and replacing it with: 
 

“HEIGHT with respect to a building refers to the maximum vertical distance between building 
grade and the highest point of the structure of a non-sloping roof, or the mid-point of a sloping 
roof. (see Diagram 2.1)  
Note: Section 6. 6 provides additional height and grade regulations.    

 

14



Bylaw No. 10796  
 
b) Adding a new definition for MID-POINT in its appropriate location that reads: 
 
 “MID-POINT of a roof means, the half way point of a roof that falls between the top of 

the peak and the top of the supporting wall.”; 
 

2. AND THAT Section 6 – General Development Regulations, 6.6 Height and Grade, Sub-Section 
6.6.1 be amended to include the word “firewalls,” after the words “roof stairway entrances, 
ventilating equipment,”; 

 
3. AND THAT Section 6 – General Development Regulations, 6.6 Height and Grade, Sub-Section 

6.6.4 be deleted that reads: 
  
 “Where the width of the dormer or dormers exceeds 50% of the width of the roof on which they are 

located the height of the dormer will be measured as if it was the main roof.” 
 
 and replaced with: 
 
 “The height of dormers will be measured as if they are the main roof, unless the dormers are 

limited to 2 dormers per elevation, with a maximum width of 1.2m each and a minimum 1m 
separation. The total width of the dormers may not exceed 50% of the horizontal width of the 
building elevation on which they are located.”; 

 
4. AND THAT Section 7 – Landscaping and Screening, Section 7.7.1 be amended by: 
 
 a) deleting the words “an ‘s’” after the words “Properties with” and replacing it with the  words 

 “a ‘c’”; and 
 
 b) deleting the word “RU1s” in the sentence that reads “(e.g. RU1s shall comply with the 

 requirements of the RU1 zone)” and replace it with “RU1c”; 
  
5. AND THAT  Section 7 – Landscaping and Screening, Table 7.1 – Minimum Landscape Buffer 

Treatment Levels Schedule be amended by: 
 
 a) deleting under Rural Residential Zones, “RR1s, RR2s, RR3s” and replacing it with   
  “RR1c, RR2c, RR3c”; and 
 
  b) deleting under Urban Residential Zones the following: 
   

i)  “RU1, RU1s, RU2, RU2s, RU3” and replacing it with “RU1, RU1c, RU2, RU2c, RU3” and 
 
ii)  “RU2hs” and replacing it with “RU2hc” 

 
6. AND THAT Section 8 – Parking and Loading, Location, Section 8.1.9 be amended by adding a new 

sub-paragraph (e) as follows: 
 

“(e)  no required parking shall be in the form of a parallel parking stall adjacent to a lane or 
alley way unless the parallel parking site is accessed by a driveway and is screened from 
the lane way.”; 

 
7. AND THAT Section 8 – Parking and Loading, Table 8.1 – Parking Schedule be amended as 

follows: 
 
a) deleting under Residential and Residential Related, Secondary Suites  at the end of the 

paragraph “Carriage house: 1 additional parking space, plus the required parking spaces 
for the corresponding principal dwelling unit.” and  

15



Bylaw No. 10796  
 
b) adding under  Residential and Residential Related, a new section in its appropriate 

location the following: 
 

Carriage House 1 additional parking space, plus the required parking spaces for 
the corresponding principal dwelling unit.  

 
8. AND THAT Section 11 – A1 – Agriculture 1/ A1c – Agriculture 1 with Carriage House/ A1t – 

Agriculture 1 with Agri-tourist Accommodation, 11.1.6 Development Regulations be amended 
as follows: 

 
 a) deleting sub-paragraph (b) that reads: 
 

“(b)  The maximum height is the lesser of 9.5 m or 2½ storeys, except it is 13.0m for 
accessory buildings and 16.0 m for agricultural structures.” 

 
and replace it with; 
 
“(b)  The maximum height is the lesser of 9.5 m or 2½ storeys, except it is 16.0 m for 

agricultural structures and 6.0m for accessory buildings or carriage house.”   
 

b) deleting sub-paragraph (e) that reads: 
 

 “(e) The minimum rear yard is 10.0 m, except it is 3.0 m for accessory buildings.” 
 
 and replacing it with: 
 

“(e) The minimum rear yard is 10.0 m, except it is 3.0 m for accessory buildings and a 
carriage house.  A carriage house must be located no closer than 4.5 m to the 
principal dwelling and no further than 10m from the principal dwelling.”;   

 
9. AND THAT Section 12 – Rural Residential Zones RR1/Rural Residential 1/RR1c – Rural 

Residential 1 with Carriage House, 12.1.6 Development Regulations sub-paragraph (b) be 
amended by deleting the words at the end of the paragraph that read “, and 13.0 m for 
agricultural structures”; 

 
10. AND THAT Schedule ‘B’ – Comprehensive Development Zones, CD10 – Heritage Cultural, 1.3 

Secondary Suites be amended by adding a new sub-paragraph “(g) Carriage House” in its 
appropriate location. 

 
11. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and from the date 

of adoption. 
 

16



Bylaw No. 10796  
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 28th day of January, 2013.  
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the  
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this   
 
Approved under the Transportation Act this   
_________________________________________________________________________ 
(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation) 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of City of Kelowna on the   
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
City Clerk 

17



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
 

BYLAW NO. 10801 
 

Text Amendment No. TA12-0010 –Amendment to the City of Kelowna 
Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 – Commercial Zone Text Amendments 

 

 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts that City of Kelowna 
Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended as follows: 
 
1. THAT Section 14 – Commercial Zone, 14.8 – Convention Hotel Commerical/C8rls-Convention 

Hotel Commercial (Retail Liquor Primary)/C8lp – Convention Hotel Commercial (Liquor 
Primary), 14.8.3 Secondary Uses be amended by adding in its appropriate location a new sub-
paragraph “(e) breweries and distilleries, minor” and renumbering the subsequent subparagraphs. 
 

2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and from the date 
of adoption. 

 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 4th day of February, 2013. 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the   
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this   
 
Approved under the Transportation Act this   
_________________________________________________________________________ 
(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure) 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of City of Kelowna on the   
 

 
Mayor 

 
 

City Clerk 

18



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 10802 
Z12-0071 – 0796838 BC Ltd.  

1789 KLO Road 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of Strata Lot 2, District Lot 131, ODYD, Strata Plan EPS1034, together 
with an interest in the common property in proportion to the unit entitlement of the 
Strata Lot as shown on Form V, located on KLO Road, Kelowna, B.C., from the C2 – 
Neighbourhood Commercial zone to the C2rls – Neighbourhood Commercial (Retail 
Liquor Sales) zone. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 4th day of February, 2013. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

19



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: January 22, 2013 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (AR) 

Application: DVP12-0185 Owner: Dany Laliberte 

Address: 2600 Dubbin Road Applicant: 
Charles Cullen, Team 
Construction Management 

Subject: Development Variance Permit 

Existing OCP Designation: Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RR3 – Rural Residential 3 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council NOT authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP12-0185, for 
Lot A, Section 20, Township 23, O.D.Y.D., Plan KAP92774, located at 2600 Dubbin Road, Kelowna, 
BC. 

2.0 Purpose  

The applicant is seeking a Development Variance Permit to vary maximum permitted building 
height from the lesser of 9.5 m or 2.5 storeys permitted to 16.27 m and 4 storeys proposed, and 
to vary the maximum permitted building projection into a required front yard from 0.6 m 
permitted to 1.2 m proposed, to facilitate the construction of a new garage on the roof of an 
existing attached garage on this steeply sloped, lakefront property. 

3.0 Land Use Management  

Land Use Management staff is recommending non-support for the proposed variances to facilitate 
construction of a new garage on the roof of the existing attached garage on the subject site. 
Staff is of the opinion that that the requested variances would result in inappropriate 
development of the site (i.e., overbuild of the site), with substantial affects for the use and 
enjoyment of adjacent land (i.e., viewscape from Lake Okanagan), thereby potentially 
establishing an unfortunate precedent for other sloping lakefront properties. 

Analysis of Proposed Height Variance 

The addition of a proposed new garage on the roof of the existing attached garage would 
increase the height of the existing building to 16.27 m and 4 storeys, a height variance of 71% or 
6.77 m and 1½ storeys, from the maximum permitted RR3 Zone height of the lesser of 9.5 m or 

20



DVP12-0185 – Page 2 

 
 

2½ storeys (see attached Elevation drawings). The existing residence with an attached double 
garage presently has a height exceeding the maximum permitted at 12.4 m and 3 storeys. While 
stepped back from the primary residence, the proposed garage addition would nonetheless be 
visible from Okanagan Lake as a 4th storey. It would span 14 m in length, nearing 50% of the 
existing building’s length as viewed from the Lake (see attached West Elevation drawing).  

It is staff’s opinion that the requested variance is not minor in nature, representing a 71% 
increase in height over the maximum permitted. Indeed, the resultant height is in proportion to 
what one might anticipate of a multi-residential structure. For reference, the RM4 Transitional 
Low Density Housing permits a maximum height of 13 m and 3 storeys, and the RM5 Medium 
Density Multiple Housing Zone permits a maximum height of 16.5 m or 4 storeys.  

The existing garage, and the proposed garage addition, are attached to the primary residence 
with interconnected access, and are therefore considered part of the primary residence for the 
purpose of calculating height and setbacks. Were it a detached garage (i.e., an accessory 
building), for comparison sake, the proposed garage addition would still not comply with zoning 
requirements. It would exceed the maximum permitted height of 4.5 m for accessory buildings by 
47% at 6.6 m, and would not provide the minimum required setback distance of 12 m for 
accessory buildings from the front property line at 6.87 m, a variance of 43%. 

Should support be provided for the proposed height variance to enable 4 storey construction on 
this site, an unfortunate precedent could be established for other sloping lakefront properties 
seeking greater height than that permitted in the underlying zone. A letter of opposition has 
been received from an adjacent neighbour concerned with this possibility, and the negative 
impacts that it would have for the rural character of the surrounding community. While it may be 
desirable to have enclosed parking for more than 2 vehicles (as provided in the existing garage), 
there are inherent limitations, benefits, and trade-offs when developing a steeply sloping site, 
and they require consideration and recognition when selecting a development site and 
formulating an overall site design. 

4.0 Proposal 

Project Description 

The applicant proposes to construct a 90 m2 addition to the existing residence to accommodate a 
new garage on the roof of the existing attached garage, located at the front of the property 
adjacent to Dubbin Road. The existing 90 m2 garage presently provides required parking for 
2 vehicles, as well as storage, and the roof of the existing attached garage presently 
accommodates open parking for an additional 3 vehicles. The proposed garage addition would 
replace the existing open rooftop parking, and provide enclosed parking for 2 vehicles, as well as 
area for a powder room, workshop/storage, and extension of the inside elevator for direct access 
to the residence.  

Should the proposed variances be approved, the addition of the proposed new garage on the roof 
of the existing attached garage would increase the overall height of the existing residence from 
12.4 m and 3 storeys to 16.27 m and 4 storeys, as measured from the base of the structure.  

The new garage addition is proposed to mirror the design of the existing residence, and match 
the existing building finishing materials of concrete, metal, and glass. As such, matching  
cantilevered canopies are proposed to project 2.1 m beyond the east and west elevations of the 
proposed garage structure. The Zoning Bylaw permits a maximum projection of no more than 

21



DVP12-0185 – Page 3 

 
 

0.6 m into the required yard. If approved, the proposed canopy would project 1.2 m into the 
minimum required 6 m front (east) yard, a variance of 100%. 

In support of the application, the applicant offers that the proposed garage is well suited since it 
would provide more level access to the site from Dubbin Road than the existing garage, and that 
combined with the inside elevator will provide the owners with “…the flexibility and a level of 
convenience that is associated with homes of this caliber.” Further the applicant notes that the 
proposed addition is designed to mirror that of the existing residence, and would “…not interfere 
with any sight lines nor does it stand out above the upper hillside.” (See attached Sight Line 
Analysis, submitted by the applicant on November 21, 2012).  

 
Neighbourhood Response 

The applicant has provided 3 letters of support for the proposed garage addition, only one of 
which is from an immediately adjacent neighbour. Two are from 2550 and 2560 Dubbin Road, 
which are properties located a few lots south of the subject site. The one letter of support from 
the north adjacent neighbours at 2630 Dubbin Road condition their approval on there being no 
future applications that would move the existing retaining wall along the front property line of 
2600 Dubbin Road to provide wider access to the proposed garage entrance. The neighbours 
explain that the subject development has already compromised the driveway that provides 
access to their property at 2630 Dubbin Road, as well as 3 other properties located to the north 
(2650, 2660 and 2672 Dubbin Road)1.  

A letter opposing the proposed variances has been received from the owners of 2597 Dubbin 
Road, whose property is located directly east and upland from subject site. The letter advances 
that the proposal to construct a 4th level to accommodate a garage addition will have an adverse 
impact on their property value, as they presently have “...an un-obstructed view of Lake 
Okanagan and this additional floor will ruin what we currently enjoy from the deck, patio and 
house.” The owners note that they are in receipt of “computer generated literature from the 
applicant’s lawyer”, but are unconvinced of its accuracy, and would prefer to rely on their own 
visual line of sight as to what the impacts of the proposal will be on their views. They further 
register their concern that approval of the proposed variances “...could possibly open the flood 
gates for other property owners to apply for similar planning permission...” and negatively alter 
the rural community appeal of McKinley Landing.  

To date, no other correspondence has been received from adjacent property owners or 
neighbours.  

4.1 Site Context 

The subject site is a lakefront property located on the west side of Dubbin Road. The subject site 
slopes steeply from the Dubbin Road frontage down to the lakeshore, with an approximate grade 
change of 26 m over a lot depth of 45.4 m (approx. 57% slope).  

                                                
1
 The 2630 Dubbin Road neighbours are referring to a preceding circumstance in which an earlier owner of 2600 Dubbin 

Road built the existing retaining wall off-site within the boundaries of 2630 Dubbin Road (within an easement area 
covering a panhandle portion of 2630 Dubbin Road). This situation was recently resolved through a lot line adjustment 
and road dedication (Subdivision Application S12-0023), such that the previous owners of 2600 Dubbin Road acquired 
the easement portion of 2630 Dubbin Road, thereby ensuring that the retaining walls benefiting 2600 Dubbin Road 
were now entirely within its property boundaries. 

22



DVP12-0185 – Page 4 

 
 

Construction of the existing residence on the site was initiated in 1993, and did not receive final 
occupancy until 2012. The 3 storey house overlooks Okanagan Lake, with an outdoor swimming 
pool at the 1st storey and an attached garage (with 2 required parking spaces) at the 3rd storey. 
The roof of the existing garage was also designed to accommodate open parking for 3 vehicles. 
Two driveway accesses are presently provided to the site ― one provides access to the attached 
garage, and the other to the parking area on top of the existing garage.  

In April 2012, Subdivision Application S12-0023 was allowed for a lot line adjustment and road 
dedication, which saw the front property line of the subject property shift east approximately 
7 m to its present location. Prior to this adjustment, the existing attached garage had been 
constructed to zero lot line, and access to the open parking area on top of the attached garage 
and the associated retaining wall were located within an easement over a panhandle portion of 
the adjacent property at 2630 Dubbin Road.  

The surrounding area is generally characterized by larger, rural estate lots with single detached 
residential development. Specifically, the adjacent zoning and land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RR3 – Rural Residential 3 Single detached houses 

East RR2 – Rural Residential 2 Single detached houses 

South RR3 – Rural Residential 3 Single detached houses 

West W1 – Recreational Water Use Okanagan Lake 

 

Subject Property Map: 2600 Dubbin Road 
 

 
  

23



DVP12-0185 – Page 5 

 
 

4.2 Zoning Analysis Table 

The following is the zoning analysis for the proposed garage addition, based on the RR3 Zone 
requirements.  

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RR3 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Development Regulations 
Site Coverage 30% 28% (unchanged by proposal) 

Height Lesser of 9.5 m or 2½ storeys 16.27 m and 4 storeys 

Front Yard (East) 6.0 m 6.87 m 

Other Regulations 
Max. Projection into  

Required Yard 
0.6 m 1.2 m into required front yard 

Parking Requirements 2 spaces  
2 spaces in existing garage, and 

2 spaces in proposed garage addition 

 To vary maximum permitted height from the lesser of 9.5 m or 2½ storeys permitted to 16.27 m and 4 storeys proposed. 
 To vary the distance that a projection may project into a required front yard from 0.6 m permitted to 1.2 m proposed. 

5.0 Technical Comments  

5.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No comment. 

5.2 Development Engineering Department 

The Development Variance Permit application to vary maximum building height from the 
lesser of 9.5 m or 2.5 storeys permitted to 16.27 m and 4 storeys proposed, and to vary 
the distance that a projection may project into a required front yard from 0.6 m 
permitted to 1.2 m proposed, does not compromise municipal servicing requirements.  

5.3 Environment & Land Use Branch 

 The Environment & Land Use Branch recommends that the foreshore of Okanagan Lake be 
protected via a no build/no disturb Section 219 Restrictive Covenant to be registered 
under the Land Title Act against the title of the subject property to effectively preserve 
the Riparian Management Area. The Riparian Management/No Disturb Covenant area is all 
the land within the property measured 15 metres upland of the Natural Boundary of 
Okanagan Lake.  

5.4 Fire Department 

No concerns. 

6.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: October 2, 2012 

Note: the application was on hold pending receipt of application materials from October 9, 2012 
until November 28, 2012.  

24



DVP12-0185 – Page 6 

 
 

7.0 Alternate Recommendation   

Notwithstanding the staff recommendation of non-support outlined in this report, should Council 
decide to support the proposed variances to maximum building height and maximum projection 
distance into a required front yard, to enable the proposed expansion of the existing attached 
garage, staff recommend that Council grant approval on condition of a Section 219 Restrictive 
Covenant being registered on title for the subject property, prior to issuance of the permit, as 
reflected in the following alternate recommendation. The intent of the covenant would be to 
ensure ongoing protection of the Riparian Management Area measuring a distance of 15 m upland 
of the Natural Boundary of Okanagan Lake. Presently, there is a substantial, existing non-
conforming deck structure within this area; however, the covenant would ensure no further 
alterations within this sensitive ecological area.  

Alternate Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP12-0185 for 
Lot A, Section 20, Township 23, O.D.Y.D., Plan KAP92774, located at 2600 Dubbin Road, 
Kelowna, BC; 

AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

1. Section 6.4.1: Projections into Yards 

To vary the maximum permitted projection into a required front yard from 0.6 m 
permitted to 1.2 m proposed (as per Schedule A). 

2. Section 12.3.6(b): Development Regulations 

To vary the maximum permitted height from the lesser of 9.5 m or 2½ storeys 
permitted to 16.27 m and 4 storeys proposed (as per Schedule A); 

AND THAT the above variances be granted subject to the applicant demonstrating that a 
no disturb/no build Section 219 Restrictive Covenant has been registered under the Land 
Title Act against the title of the subject property to preserve the Riparian Management 
Area, measuring  15 m upland of the Natural Boundary of Okanagan Lake on the subject 
property; 

AND FURTHER THAT the applicant be required to complete the above-noted condition 
within 180 days of Council’s approval of the Development Variance Permit Application, in 
order for the permit to be issued. 

Report prepared by: 

     
Abigail Riley, Land Use Planner  
 

Reviewed by:    Todd Cashin, Manager, Environment & Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion  Doug Gilchrist, Acting General Manager, Community  
Sustainability 

25



DVP12-0185 – Page 7 

 
 

 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 
Site Plan 
Building Elevations & Floor Plan 
Conceptual Drawings/Photos  
Site Line Analysis Drawings 
Enlarged Aerial Photo  
Existing Site Photos 
 

26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A: 

 

 Development Variance Permit No .: DVP12-0185  
 

 
EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION: 
 
WITHIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AREA: 
 

 
RR3 – Rural Residential 3 
 
N/A 
 

 

 

ISSUED TO:        Charles Cullen, Team Construction Management Ltd. (Owner: Dani Laliberte) 
   
LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE:    2600 Dubbin Road 

 

 

 LOT D.L. PLAN SECTION TOWNSHIP DISTRICT 

 
LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 
 

 
A 

  
KAP92774 

 
20 

 
  23 

 
ODYD  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOPE OF APPROVAL 
 
This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Municipality as described above, and any and all 
buildings, structures and other development thereon. 
 
This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the Municipality applicable thereto, 
except as specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below. 
 
Applicants for Development and Development Variance Permit should be aware that the issuance of a 
Permit limits the Applicant to be in strict compliance with regulations of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision 
Control Bylaw unless specific Variances have been authorized by the Permit.  No implied Variances from 
bylaw provisions shall be granted by virtue of drawing notations which are inconsistent with bylaw 
provisions and which may not have been identified as required Variances by the Applicant or City staff. 
 

 
1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

 

 AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 are granted:  

1. Section 6.4.1: Projections into Yards 

To vary the maximum permitted projection into a required front yard from 0.6 m permitted to 

1.2 m proposed (as per Schedule A). 

2. Section 12.3.6(b): Development Regulations 

To vary the maximum permitted height from the lesser of 9.5 m or 2½ storeys permitted to 16.27 m 

and 4 storeys proposed (as per Schedule A). 

 
2. PERFORMANCE SECURITY: None Required. 
 
 
 
 40



 - 2 - DVP12-0185 
 
 
3. DEVELOPMENT: 
   
 The land described herein shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions and 

provisions of this Permit and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a 
part hereof. 

 
 If the Permittee does not commence the development Permitted by this Permit within one year of the 

date of this Permit, this Permit shall lapse. 
 
 This Permit is not transferable unless specifically Permitted by the Municipality.  The authorization to 

transfer the Permit shall, if deemed acceptable, be granted by Council resolution. 
 
 THIS Permit IS NOT A BUILDING Permit. 
 
4. APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT: 
 
 I hereby declare that all the above statements and the information contained in the material submitted 

in support of this Permit are to the best of my belief, true and correct in all respects.  Upon issuance of 
the Permit for me by the Municipality, then in such case, I covenant and agree to save harmless and 
effectually indemnify the Municipality against: 

 
 (a) All actions and proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and by 

whomsoever brought, by reason of the Municipality granting to me the said Permit. 
 
 (b) All costs, expenses, claims that may be incurred by the Municipality if the construction by me of 

engineering or other types of works as called for by the Permit results in damages to any 
property owned in whole or in part by the Municipality or which the Municipality by duty or 
custom is obliged, directly or indirectly in any way or to any degree, to construct, repair, or 
maintain. 

 
 I further covenant and agree that should I be granted a Development Permit or Development Variance 

Permit, the Municipality may withhold the granting of any occupancy Permit for the occupancy and/or 
use of any building or part thereof constructed upon the hereinbefore referred to land until all of the 
engineering works or other works called for by the Permit have been completed to the satisfaction of 
the Municipal Engineer and Director of Land Use Management. 

 
Should there be any change in ownership or legal description of the property, I undertake to notify the Land 
Use Management Department immediately to avoid any unnecessary delay in processing the application. 
 
I HEREBY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS PERMIT. 
 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Signature of Owner/Authorized Agent 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Print Name in Bold Letters 
 

 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Telephone No. 
 

5. APPROVALS: 
 
DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT AUTHORIZED BY COUNCIL ON THE __ th of February, 2013. 

ISSUED BY THE LAND USE MANAGEMENT DEPT. OF THE CITY OF KELOWNA THE ___TH DAY OF FEBRUARY 2013. 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________________________ 
Doug Gilchrist 
Acting General Manager of Community Sustainability 

41



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: February 1, 2013 

RIM No. 0940-40 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (AR) 

Application: DP12-0158 / DVP12-0218 Owner:  
Jabs Construction Ltd.    
(Inc. No. 60327) 

Address: 
1506 Harvey Avenue &          
1544-1550 Harvey Avenue 

Applicant: 
Gary Tomporowski Architect 
Ltd. 

Subject: Development Permit & Development Variance Permit 

Existing OCP Designation: Commercial  

Existing Zone: C3 – Community Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Permit No. DP12-0158 for Lot 5, Section 
20, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 32159 except Plan KAP88859, located at 1506 Harvey Avenue, 
Kelowna, BC, and Lot 4, Section 20, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 32159, located at 1544-1550 
Harvey Avenue, Kelowna, BC, subject to the following: 
 
1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “A”; 
 
2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land, be in general 
accordance with Schedule “B”; 
 
3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule “C”; 
 
4. The applicant be required to post with the City, a Landscape Performance Security deposit in 
the form of a “Letter of Credit” in the amount of 125% of the estimated value of the landscaping, 
as determined by a professional landscaper; 
 
5. The Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure requirements to be satisfied prior to the 
issuance of the Development Permit; 
 
6. An access easement for access over Lot 5 (1506 Harvey Avenue) and Lot 4 (1544-1550 Harvey 
Avenue) in favour of each lot, and a cross-parking and loading agreement between Lot 5 (1506 
Harvey Avenue) and Lot 4 (1544-1550 Harvey Avenue) in favour of each lot, to be registered on 
the titles of both Lots 5 and 4, to the satisfaction of the City of Kelowna and the Ministry of 

42



DP12-0158 / DVP12-0218 – Page 2 

 
 

Transportation and Infrastructure, prior to the issuance of the Development Permit;  
 
7. Development Engineering requirements to be satisfied prior to the issuance of the Building 
Permit; 
 
AND THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP12-0218 for 
Lot 5, Section 20, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 32159 except Plan KAP88859, located at 1506 Harvey 
Avenue, Kelowna, BC, and Lot 4, Section 20, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 32159, located at 1544-
1550 Harvey Avenue, Kelowna, BC; 
 
AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
 
Section 6.10: Setback from Provincial Highways 
 
To vary the minimum required setback from Highway 97 from 15.0 m required to 4.5 m proposed 
(as per Schedule “A”); 
 
AND FURTHER THAT the applicant be required to complete the above-noted conditions within 180 
days of Council’s approval of the Development Permit and Development Variance Permit 
applications, in order for the permits to be issued.  

2.0 Purpose 

The Development Permit application is for the Form and Character of a proposed one-storey 
commercial development at the northeast corner of Harvey Avenue and Burtch Road. The 
accompanying Development Variance Permit application requests to vary the minimum required 
setback along Highway 97 (Harvey Avenue) from 15 m required to 4.5 m proposed, to facilitate 
the prominent siting of the proposed commercial building along Harvey Avenue. 

3.0 Land Use Management  

Staff is supportive of the form and character of the proposed development. The new commercial 
building is proposed at the northeast corner of Harvey Avenue and Burtch Road, and the design 
proposal has improved significantly to address and animate this important corner site, through 
site programming, refined architectural form and detail, and augmented landscaping. While staff 
would have preferred to see the building’s primary entrances taken from the adjacent street 
frontages (instead of the rear parking area), it is satisfied with improvements to the building’s 
street interface, including the depth of design detail added to the street-fronting elevations; the 
augmented architectural treatment of the building’s southwest corner with an articulated tower 
feature and landscaped seating area; and the proposed placement of the restaurant at the west 
end of the building. Additionally, pedestrian access to the site and business entries has been 
provided from both street frontages. 
 
Staff is also supportive of the requested variance to reduce the setback on Harvey Avenue to 
4.5 m, as this enables the construction of the new building in line with the existing buildings to 
the east, and creates a stronger built form presence along Harvey Avenue. Additionally, the 
Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure has noted that it has no concerns with the reduced 
setback. 
 
The subject property at 1506 Harvey Avenue has been vacant for a considerable time, and 
developing this lot will complete this stretch of urban frontage along Harvey Avenue, and 

43



DP12-0158 / DVP12-0218 – Page 3 

 
 

enhance this important intersection at Burtch Road. It will also improve the overall view from the 
north adjacent residential development across Burtch Road. If approved, the proposal will 
include the improvement of the unconstructed road frontage along Burtch Road, with sidewalk, 
tree planting, and 3 m landscaped buffer. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The proposed development site consists of two parcels presently owned by the property owner – 
a vacant parcel at the corner of Harvey Avenue and Burtch Road (1506 Harvey Avenue), and the 
east adjacent parcel with three existing commercial buildings (1544-1550 Harvey Avenue). The 
subject Development Permit application proposes a new, 1-storey commercial building on the 
vacant parcel at 1506 Harvey Avenue, to be sited prominently along the Harvey Avenue frontage, 
in line with the existing commercial buildings on the east adjacent site. Proposed siting of the 
building along the Harvey Avenue frontage also enables on-site parking to be provided at the rear 
of the commercial buildings. An accompanying variance is being sought to reduce the minimum 
required setback from a Provincial Highway (Harvey Avenue) from 15 m required to 4.5 m 
proposed, to facilitate the proposed placement of the new building. The two properties will be 
serviced by the two existing accesses to 1544-1550 Harvey Avenue, one located on the Harvey 
Avenue frontage and the other on the Burtch Road frontage.  
 
The proposed new building at 1506 Harvey Avenue is intended to provide commercial space, with 
a restaurant proposed at the west end of the building. The primary exterior building materials 
will consist of stucco cladding in earth-tone colours, complemented by an extensive stone veneer 
base and accent walls. Considerable attention has been given to the building’s design interface 
with the public street, and in particular, the corner condition at Harvey Avenue and Burtch Road. 
While building entry will primarily occur from the parking area, the street-facing elevations have 
been enlivened with building projections and stepping, placement of “lifestyle image panels”, 
layered finishing materials, and architectural details such as lighting and canopy features. The 
significance of the Harvey Avenue and Burtch Road corner condition is addressed through the 
provision of a significant tower feature and landscaped seating area at the southwest corner of 
the building.  Additionally, the location of the anticipated restaurant at the west end of the 
building, with extensive window glazing, ensures an animated corner interface.  
 
As part of a later phase of development at 1544-1550 Harvey Avenue (to come under a separate 
Development Permit application), the property owner intends to renovate two of the three 
existing commercial buildings (north and east buildings), and replace the west building  with an 
addition to the east elevation of the proposed new building at 1506 Harvey Avenue. 

Under the subject proposal, a portion of the required parking for the proposed new commercial 
building at 1506 Harvey Avenue will be provided on the adjacent property at 1544-1550 Harvey 
Avenue.  As the property owner is presently not in a position to consolidate the two properties at 
this time, the intention is to secure the necessary cross agreements and covenants to ensure 
protection of the shared parking and site access circumstances between the two properties.   

4.2 Site Context 

The subject site is located at the northeast corner of Harvey Avenue and Burtch Road, and 
composed of two properties. The vacant property at 1506 Harvey Avenue was formerly a gas 
station site, which has subsequently been remediated to Provincial standards. The property at 

44



DP12-0158 / DVP12-0218 – Page 4 

 
 

1544-1550 Harvey Avenue is an existing commercial property with two points of access, one on 
Harvey Avenue and one on Burtch Road.  

The subject site is located immediately north of the Capri Landmark Urban Centre, with Harvey 
Avenue as the boundary.  

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing Residential (apartment building) 

East C3 – Community Commercial  Commercial  

South C3 – Community Commercial Commercial 

West C3 – Community Commercial Commercial   

 

Subject Property Map: 1506 & 1544-1550 Harvey Avenue 

 

The application compares with the requirements of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 as follows: 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA 
C3 ZONE 

REQUIREMENTS 
PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 

Lot Area 1,300 m2 
3,491 m2 (1506 Harvey Av.) 

8,302 m2 (1506 & 1544-1550 Harvey Av.) 

Development Regulations 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 1.0 
0.39 (1506 Harvey Av.) 

0.32 (1506 & 1544-1550 Harvey Av.) 

  

Building 
Location 

Subject 
Properties 

45



DP12-0158 / DVP12-0218 – Page 5 

 
 

Development Regulations Cont.  

CRITERIA 
C3 ZONE 

REQUIREMENTS 
PROPOSAL 

Site Coverage (buildings) 50% 
39% (1506 Harvey Av.) 

32% (1506 & 1544-1550 Harvey Av.) 

Height Lesser of 15m or 4 storeys 6.1 m to 12.19 m / 1 storey 

Front Yard 3.0 m 4.5 m 

Side Yard (west) 2.0 m (flanking street) 2.0 m 

Side Yard (east)  0 m 0 m 

Rear Yard 6.0 m Meets requirement 

Setback from Provincial Hwy 
15 m (outside urban 

centre) 
4.5 m  

Min. Parking Requirements 96 spaces 96 spaces 

Bicycle Parking 11 spaces 24 spaces 

Loading Space 1 per 1,900 m2 Meets requirement 

 Vary required setback from Provincial Hwy (Harvey Av.) from 15 m required to 4.5 m proposed. 

5.0   Current Development Policies  

5.1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan 2030 (OCP) 

The subject property is designated as Commercial for future land use, and located 
immediately north of the Capri Landmark Urban Centre area, across Harvey Avenue. 

Urban Design Development Permit Areas (Chapter 14) – Design Guidelines 

Comprehensive Design Guidelines 

Objectives 

 Convey a strong sense of authenticity through urban design that is distinctive for 
Kelowna; 

 Promote a high urban design standard and quality of construction for future 
development that is coordinated with existing structures; 

 Promote interesting, pedestrian friendly streetscape design and pedestrian linkages; 

Guidelines 

Authenticity and regional expression 

 Incorporate landscaping and building form and character that is distinct to Kelowna 
and the Central Okanagan and conveys a sense of authenticity; 

 Use colours found in the region’s natural and cultural landscape; 

Relationship to the street 

 Locate buildings to provide an effective street edge while respecting the established, 
desired streetscape rhythm; 

 Develop visual and physical connections between the public street and private 
buildings (e.g. patios and spill-out activity, views to and from active interior spaces, 
awnings and canopies); 

 Design buildings with multiple street frontages to give equal emphasis to each 
frontage with respect to building massing, materials, details, and landscaping. 

Human scale 

46



DP12-0158 / DVP12-0218 – Page 6 

 
 

 Design for human scale and visual interest in all building elevations. This can be 
achieved principally by giving emphasis to doors and windows and other signs of 
human habitation relative to walls and building structure; 

 Articulate facades by means of indentations and projections of elements (e.g. 
windows and doors, cornice lines, pilasters, balconies, and other detailing). 

Pedestrian access, provision for cyclists, circulation, vehicles and loading 

 Promote the use of alternative modes of transportation in site design (e.g. prominent 
bicycle racks for convenience and security, orient building entrances to pedestrian 
areas); 

 Locate parking areas to the rear of buildings, internal to the building, or below grade; 

 Incorporate visible and secure bicycle parking in a priority location with the 
construction of all new parkades and parking lots; 

 Parking lots should have shade trees planted at 1 tree per 4 parking stalls. 

6.0   Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Development Cost Charges (DCCs) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permit(s) for new construction. 

 Size and location of all signage to be clearly defined as part of the development 
permit. 

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building 
Permit. applications 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

DP12-0158 - see attached. 

DVP12-0218 – the Development Variance Permit application to vary the front yard setback 
does not compromise City of Kelowna municipal services. 

6.3 Fire Department 

Fire Department access, fire flows, and hydrants as per the BC Building Code and City of 
Kelowna Subdivision Bylaw #7900. The Subdivision Bylaw requires a minimum of 
150 ltr/sec flow. A fire hydrant is to be located within 90 m of the principal entrance of 
the Part 3 building. Additional comments will be required at Building Permit application. 

6.4 Ministry of Transportation 

For DP12-0158, the Ministry requires the following: 

 Application for a Controlled Access permit to be submitted to the Ministry for a joint 
access to serve both Lots 4 & 5, Plan 32159 – application is available at our website. 

 Blanket easement documents for access over both lots in favour of each lot.  Copy of 
registered easement to be provided to the Ministry. 

 A Covenant to be registered on Lot 5, Plan 32159 that states that should Lot 5, Plan 32159 
be sold to a separate party, direct access to Highway 97 will not be granted. Copy of 
registered covenant to be provided to the Ministry.  

 Cross-parking agreement to be registered on the title for both Lots 4 & 5, Plan 32159. 
Copy of registered agreement to be provided to the Ministry. 

47



DP12-0158 / DVP12-0218 – Page 7 

 
 

For DVP12-0218, the Ministry has indicated that it has no concerns with the proposed 
setback as the required setback for buildings along a Provincial Highway is 4.5 m, per 
Part 3, Section 12 of the Transportation Act, Provincial Public Undertakings Regulation 
513/2004. Further the MOTI has no issue with the proposed pylon sign projecting into the 
4.5 m setback area.  

6.5 Shaw Cable 

Owner developer to install an underground conduit system per Shaw Cable drawings and 
specifications. 

6.6 Telus 

Telus will provide underground facilities to this development. Developer will be required 
to supply and install conduit as per Telus policy. 

7.0 Application Chronology 

Date of DP Application Received: August 22, 2012 
Revised Materials Received:  November 21, 2012 
Date of DVP Application Received: November 29, 2012 
Revised Materials Received:  January 21, 2012 
Revised Materials Received:  January 23, 2012 

Report prepared by: 

     
Abigail Riley, Land Use Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion  Doug Gilchrist, Acting General Manager, Community  
Sustainability 

 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Site Plan 
Building Elevations & Finishing Materials 
Conceptual Illustrations 
Landscape Plan 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Draft Development Variance Permit 

48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: February 1st, 2013 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (AW) 

Application: DP13-0010 / DVP13-0012 Owner: 0951821 B.C. Ltd., Inc. No. BC0951821 

Address: 840 Stockley Street Applicant: 0951821 BC Ltd. 

Subject: Development Permit & Development Variance Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: Multiple Unit Residential – Low Density 

Existing Zone: RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Permit No. DP13-0010 for That part of 
Section 19, Township 27, ODYD, Shown on Plan EPP18660, located at 840 Stockley Street, 
Kelowna B.C., subject to the following: 
 
1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule "A"; 
 
2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “B”; 
 
3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule "C"; 
 
4. The applicant be required to post with the City a Landscape Performance Security deposit  
in the form of a "Letter of Credit" in the amount of 125% of the estimated value of the 
landscaping, as determined by a professional landscaper; 
 
AND THAT the applicant be required to complete the above-noted condition No. 4 within 180 
days of Council approval of the Development Permit application in order for the permit to be 
issued. 
 
AND THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP13-0012 for 
That part of Section 19, Township 27, ODYD, Shown on Plan EPP18660, located at 840 Stockley 
Street, Kelowna, B.C.;  
 
AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
 

65



DP13-0010 / DVP13-0012 – Page 2 

 
 

Section 8.1.9 (c) Parking Location – Setback from Parking:   
To vary the required flanking street setback for parking from 3.0m required to 0.7m proposed. 
 
Section 13.9.6 (b) Development Regulations – Site Coverage:   
To vary the maximum site coverage from 50% permitted to 55% proposed. 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a Development Permit for the form and character of the proposed 4 unit townhouse 
development. To consider a Development Variance Permit to the proposed site coverage for 
buildings and parking from 50% permitted to 55% proposed and to vary the setback for parking 
from 3.0m required to 0.7m proposed. 

3.0 Land Use Management  

Land Use Management staff are supportive of the proposal. It is seen to meet the objectives and 
supporting policies of the Official Community Plan (OCP), as well as the applicable urban design 
guidelines. The subject property is located at the corner of two roads in a location well suited for 
a townhouse form of development. The massing and scale of the development provides an 
appropriate transition with a stepped building footprint well suited for a sloping site, thereby 
reducing the amount of cut and fill required for the development.   

The buildings represent a unique blend of modern architecture with traditional design elements. 
The hipped roof provides a traditional building aesthetic but the introduction of wood design 
features and horizontal and vertical glazing provides a modern appeal to the development. Site 
landscaping uses native species, and complements the building design. The proposed variances 
are due to the unconventional lot configuration and do not present any concerns for Staff. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The proposed development consists of a total of 4 dwelling units. Principal vehicular access for 
the units is from Stockley Street. Parking for the development is contained within each unit’s 
two-car garage with access directly from the internal drive aisle. In both form and character, the 
proposed development acts as an effective transition for a slopping property. Stepping the 
building down the site rather than levelling the lot results in a more sensitive and aesthetically 
pleasing form of development. The buildings are representative of a more contemporary 
aesthetic and the massing is reduced through the use of building articulation, mixed siding 
treatments, and intimate design details.  

Significant on site landscaping is provided in the form of native trees, shrubs and groundcover. 
This is concentrated principally at the main vehicular access point, around the perimeter of the 
building entrances and along the property lines. Private amenity space is provided to each 
individual unit in the form of large decks overlooking the golf course. 

The variances associated with the project are primarily due to the unconventional lot layout. The 
site coverage variance from 50% to 55% is due to the turnarounds required to facilitate on site 
vehicular movements and the narrow lot depth pinches the setback from driveways and parking 
at the N/E edge of the development. Neither of these variances are significant and they should 
not have a negative impact on the surrounding area.  

 

 

66



DP13-0010 / DVP13-0012 – Page 3 

 
 

The project compares to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 as follows:   

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RM3 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Development Regulations 
Floor Area Ratio 0.5 0.41 

Site Coverage – Buildings & Parking 50% 55%¹ 

Height 9.5m 7.0m 

Front Yard 4.5m 5.4m 

Side Yard (south) 4.5m 4.5m 

Side Yard (north) 4.5m 4.5m 

Rear Yard 7.5m 4.5m 

Setback from Parking 3.0m 0.7m² 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking Requirements 8 stalls 8 stalls 

Bicycle Parking 
Class I: 2 spaces 
Class II: 1 Spaces 

Provided in garage 

Private Open Space 100m2 116m2 

¹ Vary site coverage from 50% to 55% 

² Vary the setback for parking from 3.0 to 0.7m 

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located within the Black Mountain community directly across from the 
golf course. Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing Vacant 

East P3 – Parks & Open Space Park / Open Space 

South RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing Vacant 

West P3 – Parks & Open Space Golf Course 

 
Subject Property Map: 840 Stockley Street 
 
 

67



DP13-0010 / DVP13-0012 – Page 4 

 
 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Policy 5.23.1 - Ground-Oriented Housing. Encourage all multi-unit residential buildings in 
neighbourhoods with schools and parks to contain ground-oriented units with 2 or more bedrooms 
to provide a family housing choice within multi-unit rental or ownership markets. High density 
residential projects in the Downtown area are encouraged to include a ground-oriented housing 
component, especially where such can be provided on non-arterial and non-collector streets.’ 

Comprehensive Development Permit Objectives: 

 Convey a strong sense of authenticity through urban design that is distinctive for Kelowna; 

 Promote a high urban design standard and quality of construction for future development that 
is coordinated with existing structures; 

 Integrate new development with existing site conditions and preserve the character amenities 
of the surrounding area; 

 Promote interesting, pedestrian friendly streetscape design and pedestrian linkages; 

 Provide for a scale and massing of commercial buildings that promotes a safe, enjoyable 
living, pedestrian, working, shopping and service experience; 

 Incorporate architectural features and detailing of buildings and landscapes that define an 
area’s character; 

 Promote alternative transportation with enhanced streetscapes and multimodal linkages; 

 Protect and restore the urban ecology (i.e. architectural and site consideration with respect 
to the ecological impact on urban design). 

 Moderate urban water demand in the City so that adequate water supply is reserved for 
agriculture and for natural ecosystem processes. 

 Reduce outdoor water use in new or renovated landscape areas in the Cit by a target of 30%, 
when compared to 2007. 

 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permit(s) for new construction. 

 Size and location of all signage to be clearly defined as part of the development permit 
along with building addressing per the bylaws. 

 Code analysis is required for the structure at time of building permit.  

 Landscaping or retaining walls c/w guards maybe required at / near front entrances to 
deal with grade differentials between units. This may affect the form and character of 
the buildings? 

 Permits required for retaining walls & designed to the requirements of the loading from 
the fire trucks (hammer head turn around areas / vehicle areas). A Structural Engineer or 
Geotechnical Engineer may be required at time of permit application. 

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications 

68



DP13-0010 / DVP13-0012 – Page 5 

 
 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

See attached. 

6.3 Fire Department 

Fire department access, fire flows, and hydrants as per the BC Building Code and City of 
Kelowna Subdivision Bylaw #7900. The Subdivision Bylaw requires a minimum of 150ltr/sec 
flow. No concerns with the variance requests. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: January 16th, 2013  
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Alec Warrender, Land Use Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion:   Doug Gilchrist, A. General Manager, Community Sustainability 
 

Attachments: 

Site Plan 
Conceptual Elevations 
Landscape Plan 
Development Engineering Requirements 
 

69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A: 
 

 Development Permit No.:  DP13-0010 & DVP13-0012        

 
EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION: 
 
WITHIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AREA: 
 
DEVLOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT: 
 

 
RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing  
 
Revitalization Development Permit Area 
 
To vary the required flanking street setback for parking from 3.0m 
required to 0.7m proposed. 
 
To vary the maximum site coverage from 50% permitted to 55% 
proposed. 

 

 
ISSUED TO:         Andrew Bruce 
 
LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE:        840 Stockley Street 
 

 

 SECTION DISTRICT LOT TWP DISTRICT PLAN 

 
LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 
 

That part of 
Section 19 

 27  
Shown on Plan 

EPP18660 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOPE OF APPROVAL 
 
This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Municipality as described above, and any and all buildings, 
structures and other development thereon. 
 
This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the Municipality applicable thereto, except as 
specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below. 
 
Applicants for a Heritage Alteration Permit should be aware that the issuance of a Permit limits the applicant to be 
in strict compliance with regulations of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision Control Bylaw unless specific Variances have 
been authorized by the Permit.  No implied Variances from bylaw provisions shall be granted by virtue of drawing 
notations which are inconsistent with bylaw provisions and which may not have been identified as required Variances 
by the applicant or City staff. 

 
1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

 
1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general accordance with 

Schedule "A"; 
 

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general accordance with 
Schedule "B"; 

 
3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule "C"; 

 
AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

 
Section 8.1.9 (c) Parking Location – Setback from Parking:   
To vary the required flanking street setback for parking from 3.0m required to 0.7m proposed. 
 
Section 13.9.6 (b) Development Regulations – Site Coverage:   
To vary the maximum site coverage from 50% permitted to 55% proposed. 86



- 2 - 
DP13-0010 & DVP13-0012 

 
 

2. The development shall commence by and in accordance with an approved Building Permit within ONE YEAR of 

the date of the Municipal Council authorization resolution. 
 
3. DEVELOPMENT: 
 
 The land described herein shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions and 

provisions of this Permit and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a part 
hereof. 

 
 If the Permittee does not commence the development Permitted by this Permit within one year of the date of 

this Permit, this Permit shall lapse. 
 
 This Permit is not transferrable unless specifically Permitted by the Municipality.  The authorization to transfer 

the Permit shall, if deemed acceptable, be granted by Council resolution. 
 
 THIS Permit IS NOT A BUILDING Permit. 
 
3. PERFORMANCE SECURITY: 
 
 As a condition of the issuance of this Permit, Council is holding the security set out below to ensure that 

development is carried out in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Permit.  Should any interest be 
earned upon the security, it shall accrue to the Permittee and be paid to the Permittee if the security is 
returned.  The condition of the posting of the security is that should the Permittee fail to carry out the 
development hereby authorized, according to the terms and conditions of this Permit within the time provided, 
the Municipality may use the security to carry out the work by its servants, agents or contractors, and any 
surplus shall be paid over to the Permittee, or should the Permittee carry out the development Permitted by 
this Permit within the time set out above, the security shall be returned to the Permittee.  There is filed 
accordingly: 

 
 (a) Cash in the amount of $                 N/A                           . 
 (b) A Certified Cheque in the amount of $                  N/A                         . 
 (c) An Irrevocable Letter of Credit in the amount of $               TBD                  . 
 
 Before any bond or security required under this Permit is reduced or released, the Developer will provide the 

City with a statutory declaration certifying that all labour, material, workers' compensation and other taxes 
and costs have been paid. 

 
5. APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT: 
 
 I hereby declare that all the above statements and the information contained in the material submitted in 

support of this Permit are to the best of my belief, true and correct in all respects.  Upon issuance of the 
Permit for me by the Municipality, then in such case, I covenant and agree to save harmless and effectually 
indemnify the Municipality against: 

 
 (a) All actions and proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and by 

whomsoever brought, by reason of the Municipality granting to me the said Permit. 
 
 (b) All costs, expenses, claims that may be incurred by the Municipality if the construction by me of 

engineering or other types of works as called for by the Permit results in damages to any property 
owned in whole or in part by the Municipality or which the Municipality by duty or custom is obliged, 
directly or indirectly in any way or to any degree, to construct, repair, or maintain. 

 
 I further covenant and agree that should I be granted a Development Permit or Development Variance Permit, 

the Municipality may withhold the granting of any occupancy Permit for the occupancy and/or use of any 
building or part thereof constructed upon the hereinbefore referred to land until all of the engineering works 
or other works called for by the Permit have been completed to the satisfaction of the Municipal Engineer and 
Director of Planning & Development Services. 

 
Should there be any change in ownership or legal description of the property, I undertake to notify the Land Use 
Management Departmant immediately to avoid any unnecessary delay in processing the application. 
 

87



- 3 - 
DP13-0010 & DVP13-0012 

 
I HEREBY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS PERMIT. 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Signature of Owner/Authorized Agent 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Print Name in Bold Letters 
 

______________________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Telephone No. 
 

 
 
 
5. APPROVALS: 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT & DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT AUTHORIZED BY THE COUNCIL ON THE 26th  DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2013 

 

ISSUED BY THE ACTING GENERAL MANAGER OF COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY OF THE CITY OF KELOWNA THE __________ DAY OF 

FEBRUARY, 2013. 

 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 
Doug Gilchrist, A. General Manager, Community Sustainability 

88



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: February 8th, 2013 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (AW) 

Application: DVP13-0001 Owner: 
No. 21 Great Projects Ltd., Inc. No. 355991; 

0954654 B.C. Ltd., Inc. No. BC0954654 

Address: 988 & 989 Frost Road Applicant: 0954654 B.C. Ltd. 

Subject: Development Variance Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: Commercial 

Existing Zone: C3 – Community Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP13-0001 for Lot 1, 
D.L. 579, SDYD, Plan EPP22118 Except Plan EPP24124, located at 988 Frost Road and Lot 2, D.L. 
579, SDYD, Plan EPP22118 Except Plan EPP24124, located at 989 Frost Road, Kelowna, B.C; 
 
AND THAT a variance to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
 
 Section 14.3.5 (d) Development Regulations 
           To vary the front yard setback from 3.0m required to 0.5 m proposed for both 988 &989       
           Frost Road, as per Schedule ‘A’. 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a Development Variance Permit to reduce the front yard setback from 3.0m proposed 
to 0.5m proposed for both 988 & 989 Frost Road. 

3.0 Land Use Management  

The variance has been proposed so that the Ponds Commercial development provides a more 
urban and intimate Village Centre experience. The road cross section ended up being larger than 
anticipated then what the Area Structure Plan anticipated so this variance will help to keep the 
building frontages close to the street which will create a more vibrant pedestrian experience. 
Although the variance would apply to the entire property the approved DP shows a few of the 
buildings stepped back slightly from the property line in order to provide space for patios.  

Although a Development Permit for Phase 2 (south side of Frost Road) has not yet been submitted 
the applicant has requested that the front yard setback be relaxed in anticipation of future 

89



DVP13-0001 - Page 2 

 
 

development opportunities. While Staff would prefer to have a better understanding of the Phase 
2 design details, having an intimate building to street relationship is one of the overarching 
design principles as outlined in the 2030 OCP and the Neighbourhood 3 Area Structure Plan (ASP).   

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background  

In accordance with the ASP the subject properties were rezoned to the C3 – Community 
Commercial and a Development Permit for the form and character of the first 5 buildings was 
approved by Council in September 2012. Although the DP was approved, it has not yet been 
issued. When the DP was approved it conformed to Zoning Bylaw regulations, since then the Frost 
Road cross section was adjusted, necessitating the proposed Development Variance Permit.  

4.2 Project Description 

The applicant has applied to vary the front yard setback from 3.0m required to 0.5m proposed. 
The form and character of the approved buildings will not be changing nor will their perceived 
siting on site. The sidewalk was originally going to be located on private property but it has now 
been included as part of the road dedication. Therefore, the variance is required because the 
road dedication / property line moved closer to the buildings but the form and character of the 
development remains the same. 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA C3 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Development Regulations 
Front Yard 3.0m 0.5m¹ 

¹ Vary the front yard setback from 3.0m required to 0.5m proposed. 

 

4.3 Site Context 

Subject Property Map: 988 & 989 Frost Road 
 
 

90



DVP13-0001 - Page 3 

 
 

The subject properties are located in the South West Mission Sector and the adjacent land uses 
are as follows: 
 

Direction Zoning Designation Land Use 

North P3 – Parks & Open Space Power lines  

West RU1 – Large Lot Housing Residential  

South A1 – Agriculture 1 Vacant 

East C3 – Community Commercial Vacant 

 

5.0 Technical Comments  

5.1 Building & Permitting Department 

1)  The 0.5 meter setback may affect the building spatial allowances as defined in the 
2012 edition of the British Columbia Building Code.  

2) Projection over property line onto city owned land is to be reviewed and approved by 
the Real Estate Division. Please circulate this to Real Estate for comment 

5.2 Development Engineering Department 

The Development Variance Permit application to allow for a 0.5m front yard setback does 
not compromise municipal servicing requirements. 

5.3 Real Estate & Building Services  

No Concerns 

6.0 Application Chronology 

Date of Application Received: January 8th, 2013  
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Alec Warrender, Land Use Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion:   Doug Gilchrist, A. General Manager, Community Sustainability 
 

Attachments:  

Site Plan 
Cross Section 
 

91



92



93



94



95



96



97



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 10778 
Z12-0061 – Sharon Walker  

424 Park Avenue 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of Lot 1, District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan 3878 located on Park Avenue, 
Kelowna, B.C., from the RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to the RU1c – Large Lot Housing 
with Carriage House zone. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 5th day of November, 2012. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 27th day of November, 2012. 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 27th day of November, 2012. 
 
 
Approved under the Transportation Act this 23rd day of January, 2013. 
 
 
__________________Robyn Clifford_________________________________________________ 
(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation) 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

98



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: January 24, 2013 

RIM No. 0940-60 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (BD) 

Application: HAP12-0011 Owner: Sharon Lynn Walker 

Address: 424 Park Avenue Applicant: Sharon Lynn Walker 

Subject: Heritage Alteration Permit and Corresponding Development Variance Permit   

Existing OCP Designation: Single/Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: 
 
RU1 – Large Lot Housing 
 

Proposed Zone: RU1c – Large Lot Housing with Carriage House 
 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT final adoption of Zone Amending Bylaw No. 10778 be considered by Council;  
 
AND THAT Council authorize the issuance of a Heritage Alteration Permit No. HAP12-0011, 
for Lot 1, District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan 3878, located on 424 Park Avenue, Kelowna, BC 
subject to the following:  
 
      1.  The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in  
           general accordance with Schedule “A”;  
 
      2.   The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in  
            general accordance with Schedule “B”.  
 
AND FURTHER THAT a variance to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be 
granted: 
 
To vary regulation - Section 9.5b.1(c)  
To vary the location of a carriage house in an accessory building from the rear yard 
(permitted) to the front yard (proposed).  
 
 
 
 

99



HAP12-0011 – Page 2 

 
2.0      Purpose   

The applicant is requesting a Heritage Alteration Permit (HAP) to construct a carriage house on 
the site. A corresponding variance has been included as part of the HAP to vary the permitted 
location of a carriage house.  

3.0       Land Use Management   

A two bedroom carriage house is proposed for the subject property. It has been designed to 
match the existing building utilizing the same roof line, cornices, window forms and planters 
which are all identified characteristics of the Late Arts and Crafts guidelines. The carriage house 
is anticipated to be clad in a rich brown stucco with white trim.  Wood windows are proposed for 
the addition and will be painted to match the existing dwelling. The plan meets the 
characteristics for the windows, parking, building height and roof as designated in the 
Conservation guidelines for the site.   
 
The subject property is large enough to accommodate the carriage house, parking and private 
outdoor space required. The lot is an irregular diamond shape which dictates the placement of 
the carriage house. A variance is sought to allow the siting of the carriage house next to the 
principal dwelling instead of between the principal dwelling and rear lot line as required by the 
Zoning Bylaw. The historic layout of this neighbourhood has created lots in various sizes thereby 
creating an irregular streetscape pattern when considering the diverse side yards. It is 
anticipated that the proposed carriage house will fit within the established street rhythm.  
 
4.0     Proposal 

4.1   Project Description 

A modest 69m2 (743 sq. ft.) single storey carriage house is being proposed. It is planned to have 
two bedrooms and a generous kitchen living area that faces interior of the site. A patio located 
at the west rear section of the dwelling will meet the requirements for private open space. Given 
that the unit is orientated to Park Avenue, ideally there would be identifiable entrance features 
for the south elevation. However the principal entrance faces the east into the yard, but does 
have a pedestrian connection from the street.  

The plans show that the parking requirements are achievable on site. There are no plans to alter 
the existing landscaping except for incorporating pathways to the proposed carriage house from 
the parking area and the street, and installing gates in the existing chain link / cedar tree 
fencing along the front of the site. Notably, the principal building is used as the sample for the 
Arts and Crafts style.  

4.2 Site Context  

The subject property is located on the north side of Park Avenue in the Abbott Street 
Conservation Area near the Pandosy Village and in close proximity to Downtown Kelowna.  The 
property is not on the Heritage register. Surrounding land uses are: 

Direction Zoning Designation Land Use 

North RM5 –  Medium Density Multiple 
Housing 

Residential 

North east RM5 –  Medium Density Multiple 
Housing  

Residential 

 North west RU1c – Large Lot Housing with carriage 
house 

Residential 

South RU1 – Large Lot Housing Residential 

100



HAP12-0011 – Page 3 

 
4.3  Subject Property Map:  424 Park Avenue 

 

4.4 Zoning Analysis 

The proposed application meets the requirements of RU1c- Large Lot Housing with carriage house 
zone follows:   

Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 

CRITERIA PROPOSAL RU1c ZONE REQUIREMENTS   

Subdivision Regulations 

Lot Area  808 m2 550 m2 

Lot Width 38.46 m 15 m 

Lot Depth 36.98 m 30.0 m 

Site Coverage (buildings) 28 % 40% 

Site Coverage 
(buildings/parking) 

43 % 50% 

Height (existing house)  1 storey    2 ½ storeys   

 Carriage House Development  

Height 4.1 m 1 ½ storeys / 4.5 m 

Front Yard  4.5 m 4.5 m   

Side Yard (e) 26.78 m 2.0 m (1 - 1 ½ storey)  

Side Yard (w) 2.0 m 2.0 m (1 - 1 ½ storey) 

Rear yard 7.5 m  7.5m 

Distance between dwellings 4.5 m 4.5m 

Carriage house Location Front yard * Rear yard 

Floor Area of principal 
dwelling ratio 

 Principal dwelling: 141 m2 

Carriage House: 69 m2 

50% 

Lesser of 90m2 or 75% of the 
for principal dwelling  

Other Requirements 

Parking Stalls (#) 3 spaces 3 spaces 

* A variance is being sought for the location of the carriage house. 
 
 
 
 
 

101



HAP12-0011 – Page 4 

 
 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Heritage Conservation Area Development Guidelines 
 
The subject property falls within the second civic phase which spans from the end of the Great 
War, 1918, and continues through to the Great Depression, about 1932. This period is noted for 
traditional styles continuing to be favoured by builders and home buyers of the period. 
 

The Late Arts & Crafts characteristics are identified as follows in the City’s Heritage Conservation 
Area Development Guidelines:  

· Stick-built feel to the architecture 
· Medium gable and hip roof form 
· Decorated soffit & brackets 
· Open front verandah 
· Up to 1 ½ storeys 
· Horizontal wood siding & corner-boards 
· Upper storey belting (cladding may vary) 
· Ornamental crafted wood 
· Vertical double-hung window openings 
· Single & multi-sash window assembly 
· Wide window & door surrounds 
· Multiple pane windows 
· Asymmetrical front facade 
· Side or rear yard parking 
 

5.2  Heritage Policies1 

Objective 9.2 Identify and conserve heritage resources. 
 
5.3  Heritage Conservation Area - Objectives: 2 

• Encourage new development, additions and renovations to existing development which are 
   compatible with the form and character of the existing context; 
• Ensure that change to buildings and streetscapes will be undertaken in ways which offer 
   continuity of the ‘sense-of-place’ for neighbours, the broader community; and 
• Provide historical interest for visitors through context sensitive development. 

6.0    Technical Comments 

All technical comments were provided for the rezoning application and not further requirements 
were identified. 

7.0  Application Chronology 

Date of Application Received: September 10, 2012 
Council Consideration of rezoning:   November 27, 2012 
 
 
 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna, Official Community Plan, Chapter  9; Objective 9.2  Policy .4 
2 City of Kelowna, Official Community Plan, Chapter 16 

102



HAP12-0011 – Page 5 

 
7.1  Community Heritage Commission   

The above noted application was reviewed by the Community Heritage Commission at the 
meeting on October 4, 2012 and the following recommendations were passed: 

THAT the Community Heritage Commission supports Rezoning Application No. Z12-0061 and 
Heritage Alteration Permit Application No. HAP12-0011 for 424 Park Avenue, for a rezoning 
of the subject property to the RU1c-Large Lot housing with carriage house to allow the 
construction of a carriage house.  

Report prepared by: 

     
Birte Decloux, Land Use Planner  
 

Reviewed by:        Danielle Noble Manager, Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, Acting General Manager, Community Sustainability 

 

Attachments:  

Site/Landscape Plan 
Conceptual Elevations 
Context/Site Photos 

 

103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112


	Agenda
	3. Public Hearing Minutes - January 15.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	3. Regular Meeting Minutes - January 15.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	3. Public Hearing Minutes - January 29.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	3. Regular Meeting Minutes - January 29.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.1 BL10796 - TA12-0013 - Text Amendments to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 - Carriage House.docx
	Back to Agenda

	4.2 BL10801- TA12-0010 - Text Amendments to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 - Commercial Zones.docx
	Back to Agenda

	4.3 BL10802 Z12-0071 0796838 BC Ltd (Vinocity Ventures Inc) 1789 KLO Road.docx
	Back to Agenda

	6.1 DVP12-0185 AR 2600 Dubbin Rd (2) - Council Report.docx
	Back to Agenda

	6.1 DVP12-0185 Attachments.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.1 DVP12-0185 2600 Dubbin Rd - Draft Permit DVP.docx
	Back to Agenda

	6.2 DP12-0158 DVP12-0128 AR 1506 Harvey Av - Council Report1.docx
	Back to Agenda

	6.2 DP12-0158 Scans.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.2 dp12-0158 permit.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.3 DP13-0010 - Council.docx
	Back to Agenda

	6.3 dp13-0010 Council Report Attachments.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.3 DP13-0010 - Permit.doc
	Back to Agenda

	6.4 DVP13-0001 - Council.docx
	Back to Agenda

	6.4 dvp13-0001 attachments.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.4 dvp13-0001 permit.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.5 BL10778 - Z12-0061 - 424 Park Ave.docx
	Back to Agenda

	6.5.1 HAP12-0011 CMS Council Report.docx
	Back to Agenda

	6.5.1 hap12-0011.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.5.1 hap12-0011 permit.pdf
	Back to Agenda


